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Background: 

An ALSC Board of Directors Action form was submitted by SRRT/SustainRT to endorse 

their "Recommendation to Explore a New Direction for the ALA Endowment Fund" 

which calls for the ALA investment holdings to be ethically in line with ALA values, 

specifically to divest from fossil fuels and invest in Environmental, Social, Governance 

(ESG) investments. BARC did not support a previous resolution proposal. The question 

the committee was tasked with considering is Shall the ALSC Board endorse the 

recommendation to: 

● Conduct a new Request for Proposal (RFP) for investment consultants in order to 

better align the ALA Endowment Fund’s investments with ALA values. 

● Consider switching from Merrill Lynch and Clearbridge to a fund manager that 

recognizes the financial risk that fossil fuel stocks pose to the Endowment Fund. 

● Consider increasing the percentage of Environmental, Social and Governance 

(ESG) criteria for investments in the ALA Endowment Fund. 

● Consider the recent American Medical Association (AMA) divestment from fossil 

fuels as a model for ALA. 

 

ALSC's yearly endowment funds available (based on 5% of 20 quarter rolling average 

less bank fees) are the third largest revenue stream for the organization and key to 

long-term sustainability. Our long-term revenue stream strategy includes a multi-year 

transfer schedule from ALSC's Net Asset Balance into designated endowment funds.  

ALA has the ultimate fiduciary oversight of all ALA financial assets, but the ALSC 

budget committee is charged with the periodic analysis of the finances of the division 

and to review ALSC's fiscal relationship to ALA. 

 

Process: 

ALSC received a Board Action Request on 12/10/18 from the Social Responsibilities 

Round Table which was shared with the Budget Committee via email. The committee 

chair worked with the Fiscal Officer & Executive Director to gather initial information 

which was then summarized and shared with the entire ALSC Budget Committee for 

consideration. The initial request was to have a decision made prior to the Midwinter 

Conference, which was not possible and communicated by current ALSC President. 

The SSRT contacts, Al Kagan & Jenny Rockwell, were informed the committee would 

discuss and present a recommendation to the ALSC Board at the conference and were 

asked to provide a shorter version of the complete proposal which was supplied near 

the end of December. The committee discussed the issue over email to best understand 



the complex issue which for many, is a great learning curve. The Fiscal Officer provided 

contextual information on Environmental, Social, Governance (ESG) factors to the 

committee.  

 

Due Diligence: 

Upon receipt of the Board Action Form, Fiscal Officer initiated discussions with the 

Budget Chair which in turn initiated discussion with the full committee.  

 

● Committee members initially reviewed the following documents: 

○ 1. ALSC Board Action Request 

○ 2. New Direction for ALA Endowments summarized 

○ 3. BARC Response 

○ 4. 3rd Quarter ALSC financial statements 

● Executive Director requested additional information regarding ALA Endowments 

with the following results, shared with the committee to consider: 

○ Investment Policy revision draft - not available, draft to be presented at 

their Feb 2019 meeting & subsequently posted on the website 

○ RFP for Investment Advisor - last competitive RFP was done in 2015 and 

is on a 5-year cycle so due to be done again soon 

○ Portfolio composition or last Merrill Lynch statement in order to see 

analysis by asset allocation and equity sectors - What can be shared is 

available on the website (e.g. quarterly returns), some information is 

considered confidential. Trustees evaluate total performance, generally do 

not dig into individual holdings. As of September 2018, 28.1% of ALA’s 

total Endowment is invested in ESG focused assets. 

○ Overview of how stakeholder input is considered - No formal process for 

seeking input exists, the Trustees would be expected to respond to 

requests or input & BARC would consider any Council action that might 

have impact for the Trustees. 

○ Copies of Endowment Trustee meeting minutes from June 2017-

December 2018 - Endowment Trustees have updated their website to 

include a selection of agendas, minutes, and reports.  

http://www.ala.org/aboutala/committees/ala/ala-endwmttr 

● Reviewed a shortened version of the complete 263 report, New Direction for ALA 

Endowment Fund from SRRT 

● Reviewed a glossary of terms for the committee and a 5-year financial trends 

document created by Fiscal Officer Paula Holmes 

● Considerations included 

○ Potential impact to ALSC Endowments and long-term financial position 

○ Process and timeline 
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○ American Medical Association move to ESG as a model 

○ Ethics and values 

● The committee shared comments over email and completed a short survey to 

gauge opinion prior to conference 

● Chair prepared documents for the committee discussion at Midwinter 

● Committee discussed at the Budget Committee meeting 

 

Conclusions and Questions for the Board’s Consideration 

ALA's financial survival depends as much upon its perceived integrity to members and 

potential members, as on its investments. The following is prepared by sub-category of 

the overall request to support the proposal. 

 

Conduct a new Request for Proposal (RFP) for investment consultants in order to better 

align the ALA Endowment Fund’s investments with ALA values. 

● The cycle for issuing an RFP is due so it appears there would not be additional 

procedural work.  

● How much input or information on this issue should be shared with ALSC 

members at large? Do our members have knowledge about endowments, 

ALA/ALSC Endowments, and ESGs? Is it important to our membership that our 

investments are aligned with our values?  

● Do donors to our endowments have opinions or do we need to solicit or consider 

their wishes? 

 

Consider switching from Merrill Lynch and Clearbridge to a fund manager that 

recognizes the financial risk that fossil fuel stocks pose to the Endowment Fund. 

● The list of current holdings shared by the Trustees at Midwinter states that 

Energy is 1.7% of the portfolio.  

● BARC’s response that reallocation of investments would result in a negative 

investment return is disputed by SRRT. If Clearbridge is a managed fund, 

reallocation and balancing stocks should not be a problem to administer and 

according to SRRT there is a good deal of evidence that transitioning results in 

positive long-term performance.  

● Have Merrill Lynch & Clearbridge been asked to or given direction to invest in 

ESG holdings or to invest in alignment with ALA values? 

● Would recommending a specific fund manager result in difficulties getting support 

from BARC & ALA Finance Staff? Wouldn’t the RFP process provide the 

structure & criteria for that selection?  

 

Consider increasing the percentage of Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) 

criteria for investments in the ALA Endowment Fund. 



● Review of prior meeting minutes indicate that requests for moving to ESG 

holdings have come before the Trustees in the past, this is not a new or unique 

issue. 

● We know the percent ESG of ALSC holdings are at about 28%. What would this 

shift look like over time - increase to 50% by a certain time? 

● Are there other holdings that ALA/ALSC may have investments in that could be 

perceived as contrary to our core values? 

 

Consider the recent American Medical Association (AMA) divestment from fossil fuels 

as a model for ALA. 

● There are a number of models for ESG investing in addition to the AMA, others 

were not specifically referred to in the report/request. The American Psychiatric 

Association is reportedly divesting from fossil fuels.  

● Is it important that we use this specific association? Perhaps their experience can 

inform the RFP creation or our process without requiring us to model their 

experience/holdings? 

 

Additional Questions for the Board to Consider: 

1. To what extent is it possible for ALSC to have a say in the ALA Investments? Is 

this an opportunity for ALSC to be a leader amongst ALA Divisions and help ALA 

develop an investment strategy that is designed specifically for and with the input 

of the organization, membership, and stakeholders? 

2. ALSC holds a significant stake in the endowments and lacks control over the 

endowment transfers, do we need to consider a long-range strategy for exploring 

ways to spend down the balances and invest more in today's programs than the 

endowments for the future?  

3. There are not a lot of Endowment Trustees and turnover is infrequent. 

Understandably, there is a long learning curve and length of service may provide 

quality to the work. Does the composition of the Endowment Trustee align with 

core values of diversity & inclusion? Is there an opportunity to create or support a 

development pipeline for future Trustees? 

 

 

Committee Recommendation(s): 

The ALSC Budget Committee having duly considered the request from SRRT 

recommends the following: 

 

Conduct a new Request for Proposal (RFP) for investment consultants in order to better 

align the ALA Endowment Fund’s investments with ALA values. 

● Support 



○ Our hope would be to have clear criteria reflecting the organizational 

values and desires and seek to select and evaluate consultants using that 

criteria. 

 

Consider switching from Merrill Lynch and Clearbridge to a fund manager that 

recognizes the financial risk that fossil fuel stocks pose to the Endowment Fund. 

● No Recommendation 

○ We feel the first bullet above would inform this, but support in spirit. 

 

Consider increasing the percentage of Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) 

criteria for investments in the ALA Endowment Fund. 

● Support 

○ We’d like to request in return, clear goals & performance benchmarks.  

 

Consider the recent American Medical Association (AMA) divestment from fossil fuels 

as a model for ALA. 

● Support in spirit 

○ We appreciate this example, but would not want to limit our ability to look 

at other association models and use to create our own strategy for 

ALA(ALSC). 

 

Additionally, the Budget Committee would like to suggest that the ALSC Board of 

Directors consider our concerns about the lack of transparency we encountered in 

exploring this subject. While there are signs of promise that things could improve, such 

as the Endowment Trustees posting meeting minutes on the website, we’d like to 

suggest a more proactive effort on the part of the Trustees to solicit and consider 

stakeholder input and transparency of reporting.  

 

Additional Resources Reviewed 

ALA Financial Reports 

http://www.ala.org/aboutala/governance/financialdata/financialrpts/financialrpts 

 

ALA Investment Policy Statement - Long-Term Investment (Endowment Fund) 

http://www.ala.org/aboutala/governance/financialdata/alafinancialteam/investmentpolicy 

 

BARC Response to the ALA Council Regarding the Resolution on Socially Responsible 

Investments for the ALA Endowment 

http://www.ala.org/aboutala/sites/ala.org.aboutala/files/content/governance/financialdata

/financialrpts/BARC_Response_to_ESG_ResolutionFinalAC18.pdf 
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Recommendation to Explore a New Direction for the ALA Endowment Fund (Full 

Report) https://drive.google.com/file/d/1L6s6UAnaGrENJZsS1C-2QjJclcWVVtEr/view 

 

SRRT Proposed Resolution Adoption of Sustainability as a Core Value of Librarianship - 

https://connect.ala.org/HigherLogic/System/DownloadDocumentFile.ashx?DocumentFil

eKey=f83b763f-81b4-41ad-9f22-a8683e126760 
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